## **AGREEMENT BETWEEN**

## CENTRAL NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY COLLEGE

### **AND**

# THE CNM EMPLOYEES UNION PART-TIME FACULTY

# **EFFECTIVE THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2027**

(Updated as a result of the Full Contract Negotiations that were settled on November 13, 2024)

## This Page Intentionally Left Blank

#### PART-TIME FACULTY

# COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CENTRAL NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND THE CNM EMPLOYEES UNION

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1:	AGREEMENT	l
ARTICLE 2:	DEFINITIONS	1
ARTICLE 3:	RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 4:	VACANCIES	2
ARTICLE 5:	FACULTY EVALUATIONS	3
ARTICLE 6:	PERSONNEL FILES	4
ARTICLE 7:	MAINTAINING MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS	6
ARTICLE 8:	DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING	6
ARTICLE 9:	ABSENCE WITHOUT NOTICE	7
ARTICLE 10:	LEAVE	7
ARTICLE 11:	EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS	10
ARTICLE 12:	INSURANCE	10
ARTICLE 13:	COMPENSATION	U
ARTICLE 14:	NON-DISCRIMINATION	14
ARTICLE 15:	SENIORITY	14
ARTICLE 16:	FACULTY RIGHTS	16
ARTICLE 17:	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	18
ARTICLE 18:	PART-TIME FACULTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND STUDENT SUCCESS	23
ARTICLE 19:	TASK TEAMS/COMMITTEES	25
ARTICLE 20:	JOB DESCRIPTIONS	25
ARTICLE 21:	WORK SCHEDULES	26
ARTICLE 22:	HEALTH AND SAFETY	26
ARTICLE 23:	PARKING	27

ARTICLE 24:	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	27
ARTICLE 25:	CONTRACTING OUT	28
ARTICLE 26:	UNION RIGHTS	28
ARTICLE 27:	FACULTY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	31
ARTICLE 28:	AGREEMENT CONTROL	32
ARTICLE 29:	COMPLETE AGREEMENT	32
ARTICLE 30:	SEVERABILITY	33
ARTICLE 31:	NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES	33
ARTICLE 32:	NO STRIKE	35
ARTICLE 33:	AGREEMENT COPIES	35
ARTICLE 34:	ACADEMIC FREEDOM	36
ARTICLE 35:	TERM OF AGREEMENT	36
SIGNATURE PA	AGE	37
	CREDIT-HOUR METHODOLOGY FOR THE CALCULATION OF PART-TIME	ΙE

# AGREEMENT BETWEEN CENTRAL NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND THE CNM EMPLOYEES UNION

#### CNM PART-TIME FACULTY

#### ARTICLE 1: AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into between the Central New Mexico Community College, hereinafter referred to as the College, and the CNM Employees Union, hereinafter referred to as the Union. It is the general purpose of this Agreement to promote harmonious relations between the Union and the College as well as to establish a peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences and to establish rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment. Pursuant to such purpose, seeking remedies to issues covered by the Agreement through means other than as indicated in this Agreement is prohibited. This provision of the agreement does not prohibit or limit any right a union-represented employee may have to pursue alternative legal remedies under applicable State or Federal laws.

#### ARTICLE 2: DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise specifically defined elsewhere in the agreement, the following definitions shall be applicable throughout the Agreement.

- 2.1 AGREEMENT This contract between the Governing Board and the Union.
- 2.2 BARGAINING UNIT In accordance with the Public Employee Bargaining Act, the part-time faculty bargaining unit was established prior to July 1, 1999 and shall continue to be recognized as an appropriate bargaining unit for the purpose of the Public Employee Bargaining Act.
- 2.3 BOARD NM Public Employee Labor Relations Board (PELRB).
- 2.4 COLLEGE shall mean the Central New Mexico Community College or CNM.
- 2.5 GOVERNING BOARD shall mean the Central New Mexico Community College Governing Board.
- 2.6 UNION shall mean the CNM Employees Union, CNM Part-Time Faculty.
- 2.7 PART-TIME FACULTY MEMBER shall mean a part-time faculty employee who is hired as a part-time faculty. A part-time faculty member can become a full-time faculty member only if he/she applies and is officially selected into a full-time position.

- 2.8 DAYS shall mean Monday through Friday except for holidays which are observed by the College.
- 2.9 POLICY the Board's Collective Bargaining Policy (Governing Board Resolution 2020-53).
- 2.10 UNION REPRESENTATIVE a Union member who is designated by the Union to represent the Union can be any member who is a worksite representative, a member of the Grievances Committee, a member of the CNMEU Executive Council, or an outside advocate, including an attorney, to represent an employee at an arbitration hearing.
  - 2.10.1 Union member is defined as any dues paying member of CNMEU in good standing as determined by the Union.
  - 2.10.2 Worksite representatives must be approved by the CNMEU Executive Council.
- 2.11 PRESIDENT the chief executive officer of CNM.
- 2.12 MANAGEMENT means an employee who is engaged primarily in executive and management functions and is charged with the responsibility of developing, implementing, administering, or effectuating management procedures or board policies. An employee shall not be deemed a management employee solely because the employee participates in cooperative decision-making programs on an occasional basis. Management employees are not part of the part-time bargaining unit.

#### ARTICLE 3: RECOGNITION

- In accordance with the CNM Collective Bargaining Resolution, the College hereby recognizes the CNM Employees Union as the exclusive representative of all employees covered by this Agreement. The employees covered by this Agreement are all part-time faculty except as indicated by this Agreement. This does not include supervisory, management or confidential employees even if said employee is teaching on a part-time basis.
- 3.2 Unless authorization is obtained from the Vice President of Academic Affairs part-time faculty bargaining unit members shall not be covered by the terms of this Agreement when teaching/training for Ingenuity Inc., the Workforce Training Center, or when the employee is instructing in a seminar.

#### ARTICLE 4: VACANCIES

4.1 Vacancies for employee positions in the part-time faculty bargaining unit shall be posted on the Human Resources website for at least ten (10) days prior to the final

date for the submission of position applications and/or letters of intent unless an operational need dictates otherwise.

- 4.1.1 Each vacancy posting shall contain at least the name of the position, the major responsibilities of the position, the school, the academic discipline, and applicant qualifications needed for the position. Applicant qualifications will include minimum requirements and preferences.
- 4.1.2 Each vacancy will be filled with the applicant the College determines to be most competent. The College recognizes the positive contribution that faculty members make to the interview and selection process for faculty positions. During the term of this Agreement, the Academic Schools will continue to use faculty, which may include part-time faculty, to assist with the interview and selection process as they determine it to be in the best interests of the College. First consideration for selection will be given to current employees when qualifications and experience are equal in the judgment of the hiring committee who make the recommendation. Consideration will be given to internal applicants' performance records contained in the applicant's official personnel files. The final authority for all hiring decisions rests with the dean or the dean's designee.
- 4.2 Part-time faculty members can become a full-time faculty member only if they apply and are officially selected into a full-time position. Selection into a full time faculty position is the exclusive determination of the College and shall not be subject to grievance or review.
  - 4.2.1 Part-time faculty who apply but are not chosen for a full-time position may request a meeting with the Dean, or Dean's designee, in order to discuss how to better prepare for consideration for a full-time position.
  - 4.2.2 Part-time faculty, who through their participation in the College's Framework Professional Development Program that is referenced in Article 18, earn a program credential from that program, will, all other things being equal, be given preference as identified by the hiring committee, when applying for a full-time faculty position at CNM.
- 4.3 The College retains the right to reassign qualified employees based upon the needs of the College. This includes but is not limited to reassignment to different campuses as deemed necessary by the College.

#### ARTICLE 5: FACULTY EVALUATIONS

5.1 A purpose of evaluation is to enhance the quality of instruction and provide faculty with feedback.

- After a part-time faculty member has attained veteran status it shall be the goal of the College to provide the part-time faculty member with a performance evaluation on a College approved format. The evaluation may include student evaluation, management/supervisor observations and/or peer observations. Veteran part-time faculty shall be evaluated at least once every three years. Classroom observations shall occur at least once every two years. If an instructor teaches courses in more than one school or department, that part-time faculty member will still receive a classroom observation in each school or department at least once every two years.
- 5.3 Student feedback shall not be used as a basis for a negative evaluation of a part-time faculty member's overall performance unless management substantiates the data. This language shall not be interpreted to prevent the inclusion of such feedback in the evaluation. No unsubstantiated anonymous or unsigned student authored information will be placed in an employee's official file unless it is part of the evaluation portfolio/instrument.
- 5.4 Before submitting the written formal evaluation to the part-time faculty member's file, supervisors shall provide the part-time faculty member with an electronic copy of the written evaluation. A hard copy will be provided upon request. Supervisors shall hold a conference with the part-time faculty member who wishes to discuss his/her evaluation. The College will make every effort to ensure this process is consistent across all schools.
- 5.5 Part-time faculty members may submit a written response to any formal evaluation that is placed in the employee's official personnel file. The response shall be attached to or be part of the evaluation.
- 5.6 Evaluations shall remain confidential and used by the College only for legitimate business purposes. Every effort will be made to notify the employee and share recommendations for improvement for all performance and conduct concerns before the concerns are documented in the evaluation.
- 5.7 The parties agree they have a mutual interest in aligning the faculty evaluation process to the overall goals and mission of the College and to making the evaluation process as meaningful and constructive as possible. The parties further agree to study application of the part-time faculty evaluation process in the faculty management committee meeting in order to make recommendations that will make the system as effective as possible.

#### ARTICLE 6: PERSONNEL FILES

6.1 The College shall maintain an official personnel file for each employee to include retired employees. The official personnel file is digital and will be maintained in the College's Electronic Data Storage System.

- 6.2 An employee shall be permitted to review material contained in the employee's official personnel file. The College shall provide the employee access to the employee's official personnel file upon reasonable advance notice but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after the employee or the employee's representative has made the request for access. The employee shall be required to show proper identification. A designated representative of the Human Resources Department shall be present during the file review. The file reviewer may be required to sign and date a form maintained in the personnel file.
- 6.3 No anonymous, unsigned or unsubstantiated student authored information will be placed in any employee's official file except for official department student evaluations.
- 6.4 The employee has the right to be accompanied by a Union representative while examining the employee's official file.
- 6.5 An employee may designate a Union representative to have access to the employee's official file provided the designation is done in writing.
- 6.6 The College shall provide an employee a copy of any document except routine file maintenance documents prior to the placement of the document in the official file. The employee shall be asked to sign the document in order to verify that the employee has seen the document.
- 6.7 The College will honor reasonable requests for a copy of an accessible document in the official file for the employee. The employee may be required to assume a reasonable cost for the copies.
- 6.8 The employee has the right to respond in writing to anything placed in the employee's official file and have such response placed with the material to which the response relates.
- 6.9 The department and each supervisor may maintain a separate working file for each employee that is not accessible to the employee. Information contained in the working file concerning performance shall not be used as a basis for disciplinary action, unless the employee is apprised of the information and provided an opportunity to respond and challenge the information.
- 6.10 All supervisors may provide recommendations upon the request of a part-time faculty member. When performance information is requested by an outside employer, as part of an official reference check request, supervisors may not knowingly provide false or misleading information.

#### ARTICLE 7: MAINTAINING MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

- 7.1 The parties recognize there are certain licenses and/or certifications required to be qualified to perform the duties of their job description. The part-time faculty member shall be responsible for the maintenance of these qualifications.
- 7.2 A part-time faculty member who fails to maintain a required license and/or certification for the member's position may be removed from the member's position and may be terminated.
- 7.3 All faculty who teach a course at CNM with an on-line component are required to be certified to teach on line. Certification courses are available through the Innovation and Instructional Support Department at no cost to the employee. Successful completion of certification one training is required to teach consensus courses. Successful completion of certification two training is required to teach individual and template courses. All new faculty are automatically enrolled in certification one training. Faculty must enroll in certification two training through Workday.

#### ARTICLE 8: DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING

- 8.1 The parties agree that the maintenance of a drug/alcohol free work place is a goal of both the College and the Union. Employees are prohibited from possession, consumption and/or being under the influence of a controlled substance/alcohol while on the College's premises or during time paid by the employer. Violations of this prohibition may result in a disciplinary action up to and including termination.
- 8.2 The College may administer an alcohol and/or drug test of an employee when the College has probable cause to believe the employee is under the influence of a controlled substance and/or alcohol. For the purposes of this section, "probable cause" shall be defined as observable and articulable behavior exhibited by an employee which would lead a reasonable adult to conclude that the employee may be under the influence of a controlled substance and/or alcohol. Failure of an employee to cooperate in such testing may result in disciplinary action, including termination, against the employee.
- 8.3 Employees required by federal or state law or regulation to be subjected to random drug and/or alcohol tests will be required to comply with these tests. Employees involved in a vehicle accident, while driving a CNM vehicle during work time, will be required to comply with post-accident drug and alcohol testing. Failure of an employee to cooperate in such testing may result in disciplinary action, including termination, against the employee.
- 8.4 Employees with substance abuse problems shall continue to be offered the opportunity to utilize the services provided by the College's Employee Assistance Program (EAP). Depending on the severity of the detected employee's substance

abuse problem, the College may either offer the employee EAP services and/or commence disciplinary action against the employee. If the College has initiated substance abuse testing of an employee or disciplinary action is pending, an employee's self-referral shall not preclude either action being taken by the College. An employee's self-referral to the EAP shall remain confidential between the employee and their medical provider and will not be used as a basis for disciplinary action.

- 8.5 Any additional policies and/or practices related to drug and/or alcohol testing shall not conflict with these provisions. Prior to the implementation of these policies and/or procedures, the Union will be given the opportunity to review the proposed policies and/or procedures and provide input to the College's Executive Director of Human Resources.
- 8.6 Employees who participate in substance abuse programs while continuing employment with the College shall be subject to return to work agreements and periodic substance abuse testing as a condition of continued employment.

#### ARTICLE 9: ABSENCE WITHOUT NOTICE

- 9.1 Employees who are to be absent from work are required to call their supervisors in accordance with the work place practices in effect or instructions from their supervisor. Failure to follow proper procedures may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination
- 9.2 Failure of an employee to notify the College of an absence for more than three (3) consecutive days will be considered job abandonment and treated as a voluntary resignation except in verifiable cases of extreme emergency where the employee is prevented from giving notification by events beyond their control. Such resignation is irrevocable and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.
- 9.3 All work place absences are subject to approval from the supervisor.

#### ARTICLE 10: LEAVE

Part-time instructors accrue leave as delineated in this Article. Leave accrued as a part-time instructor may not be used for an absence in another employment capacity with the College. Leave accrued in another employment capacity with the College cannot be used for an absence as a part-time instructor. All leave is subject to prior approval of the Dean or Dean's designee. Part-time instructors who are also employed at the College in a full-time capacity shall not earn leave as a part-time instructor.

Chargeable paid leave shall be made in one quarter (1/4) hour increments. All employee absences shall be recorded and, where appropriate, debited on a one-to-one basis from accrued leave

- 10.1 Court Leave Leave with full pay may be granted an employee for court legal process including jury duty, response to subpoena or other legal process that requires an absence from duty for other than personal matters. Leave with pay will not be granted to an employee pursuing a claim or called to testify against CNM.
- 10.2 To avoid double payment employees who are required and who report for jury duty shall make arrangements with the College to sign over to the College any check(s) or monies received for the performance of such jury duty during the hours the employee was also scheduled to work at CNM and for which CNM paid the employee Court Leave. Compensation received for mileage and expenses may be retained by the employee.
- 10.3 In order to be eligible to receive payment under this article, an employee must notify their supervisor on his/her first workday after receipt of a notice to report for jury duty and must furnish satisfactory evidence that jury duty was performed and the amount of compensation received for such service on the days for which payment is claimed.
- 10.4 If an employee is notified to do so by his/her supervisor when he/she is excused from jury service either temporarily or permanently, on any scheduled workday, the employee shall promptly report to complete any remaining hours of his/her scheduled workday.
- 10.5 Sick Leave Sick leave with pay may be used by an instructor for personal illness and/or illness in the immediate family, as defined by the Employee Handbook, subject to the limits set forth herein, and for injury or quarantines. Sick leave is only earned through teaching courses as a part-time instructor and can only be used for absences from teaching courses and holding office hours.

A part-time instructor shall accrue sick leave per pay period/per course. A maximum of 77 hours will accrue per year. Sick leave may be carried over and accrued to a maximum of 1362 hours.

Part-time instructors will earn sick leave up to the maximum allowed annually at the rate of .057 per contact and office hour. For example,

ENG xxxx = 3 contact hours + 1 office hour x 15 wks = 60 total hours x .057 = 3.42 sick leave hours per term MATH xxxx = 4 contact hours + 1 office hour x 15 wks = 75 total hours x .057 = 4.28 sick leave hours per term

- 10.6 A maximum of three (3) consecutive calendar days of sick leave in succession may be used by an employee for illness of an employee's immediate family member. For illness extending beyond three (3) days in succession, see 10.8 of this Article.
- 10.7 If the absence is due to a work-related injury or illness, the CNM President may advance additional sick leave to the employee in an amount equal to the amount the employee would have accrued during the balance of the term only if there is a

- catastrophic illness to the employee or immediate family member. Requests for this benefit shall be submitted in writing to the CNM President.
- 10.8 An employee who is absent because of personal or family illness may be required by the employee's supervisor to submit a physician's statement attesting to the illness.
- 10.9 Appointments for treatment by a physician, dentist, or counselor including maternity and mental health issues, are legitimate reasons for the use of sick leave. Prior arrangements for the appointments shall be made by the employee with the employee's supervisor and adequate documentation may be required.
- 10.10 Abuse of sick leave is sufficient reason for termination of employment or other disciplinary action.
- 10.11 Bereavement Leave a maximum of three (3) consecutive calendar days leave with pay shall be granted an employee in the event of a death in the employee's immediate family as defined in the Employee Handbook. If additional leave is required, the employee may use available personal leave as appropriate. Bereavement leave is not cumulative and shall not be deducted from accumulated personal leave. The supervisor may require verifiable proof that the decedent is an immediate family member.
- 10.12 Personal Leave Each employee shall accrue personal leave with pay for each course taught. Personal leave is only earned through teaching courses as a part-time instructor and can only be used for absences from teaching courses.
- 10.12.1 Personal leave shall be accrued at a rate of .022 per contact and office hour. For example,

  ENG xxxx = 3 contact hours + 1 office hour x 15, wks = 60 total hours x .022 = 1.32 personal leave hours per term.

  MATH xxxx = 4 contact hours + 1 office hour x 15 wks = 75 total hours x .022 = 1.65 personal leave hours per term
- 10.13 Except in the case of an emergency, personal leave requires advance approval by the dean or dean's designee.
- 10.14 Not more than twenty-six (26) hours of personal leave granted but not taken during an academic year may be carried forward to the following academic year.
- 10.15 Use of personal leave is discouraged during staff development days and is prohibited during the first five (5) or last five (5) instructional days of a term unless an exception is approved by the dean or the dean's designee. Requests to use personal leave during the term will not be unreasonably denied by the Dean or the Dean's designee, provided the instructor can demonstrate adequate continuity of instruction, as determined by the Dean or the Dean's designee.
- 10.16 Personal leave that is accrued but not taken, is not paid out when the employee separates from the College.

#### ARTICLE 11: EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS

11.1 Part-time faculty and their dependents are eligible for educational benefits as authorized by the CNM policy contained in the Employee Handbook, provided the part-time faculty member has a teaching assignment during the term in which the benefit is to be used.

Domestic partners who have registered through CNM's Human Resources Department are eligible for this benefit.

Part-time instructors who use this benefit must comply with the policies and procedures related to this benefit, including the repayment of the value of this benefit if the instructor does not complete their assignment for the term.

In order to improve the professional development opportunities for part-time faculty, instructors are eligible to be released from classroom responsibilities with full pay to participate in approved professional development activities. Such activities may include meetings, conferences or seminars.

#### ARTICLE 12: INSURANCE

- 12.1 Insurance shall be offered to all part-time faculty in accordance with the CNM Employee Handbook except that eligibility shall be determined as follows:
  - 12.1.1 Part-time faculty earn a one-year stability period of health insurance eligibility (January 1 through December 31) when over a one-year look-back period determined by the College, a part-time faculty member has taught an average of ten (10) credit hours per term during the look-back period or as otherwise required by law.
  - 12.1.2 New part-time instructors will be evaluated for insurance eligibility during the annual look back period.
  - 12.1.3 Part-time faculty who are eligible for insurance shall only be able to enroll in insurance benefits during an open enrollment period determined by the College or due to a qualifying event.
  - 12.1.4 CNM will pay the employer share of the insurance premium for a part-time faculty member who has earned a stability period and wishes to maintain insurance benefits during a term in which the faculty member has no assignment. The faculty member must pay the employee share of the monthly insurance premiums during this time. Failure to pay the employee share of the health insurance premium on time may result in a loss of coverage.

- 12.2 Fall 2017 shall be the final term in which part-time faculty are eligible for insurance on a per term basis. Part-time faculty members who enrolled in insurance benefits for the Fall 2017 term only, shall be covered through December 31, 2017.
- 12.3 Employees who choose to participate in these insurance programs will have their premium payments deducted through payroll deductions for all coverage. Employees who do not receive a paycheck for any reason or receive checks that do not cover all benefit premiums, will be responsible for making the required premium payments in order to retain insurance coverage. Employees will be given the opportunity to pay the missed premium before coverage is cancelled. At a minimum, notice of the requirement to pay missed premiums will be sent via CNM email.
- 12.4 CNMEU will be given the opportunity to provide input to CNM's Director of Benefits, on the health, dental and vision plan designs prior to their adoption, through the Union's attendance at the Benefit Information Team Meetings.

#### ARTICLE 13: COMPENSATION

13.1 Effective with the beginning of Spring Semester 2025, the credit hour rates for course pay contained in Appendix A will increase by 3%.

Effective with Fall Semester 2018, course pay will be calculated based on credit hour, degree status, and tier for lecture hour courses, and by credit hour and tier for non-lecture courses. The value per credit hour in each category is documented in the appendix. Office hours will still be required, if applicable.

Pay increases and decreases during the course of this agreement shall be decided by the Governing Board following collective bargaining negotiations except as provided under Article 35.2 of this Agreement. During the intervening years of a multi-year contract, either party may reopen negotiations in accordance with the wage reopener provisions contained in Article 35.

The parties recognize that part-time instructors who qualified previously are paid at different steps based upon negotiations in the past which recognized long-term employees who worked at the college for several years without any increase in wage rates. There are two steps which are identified as Step A and Step B. Step A pertains to part-time faculty who completed six but less than eleven terms teaching at CNM since the beginning of the summer term of 1993 and end of the fall term of 2002. Step B pertains to part-time faculty who completed eleven or more terms teaching at CNM since the beginning of the summer term of 1993 and the end of the fall term of 2002. The existence of these steps does not imply future movement in steps for part-time instructors. Terms taught as a full-time faculty member are not qualifying when assessing a part-time instructor's eligibility for the steps. With the

- conversion to the credit hour methodology for the calculation of course pay, parttime faculty in steps A and B will be combined into a single category designated as Tier 2. All other part-time faculty will be combined into a single category designated as Tier 1. The establishment of tiers is for pay purposes only.
- 13.2 Effective with the Spring Semester of 2024, instructional projects that do not involve classroom time shall be paid at \$36.00 per hour. Every effort will be made to ensure that the type of projects, which are approved for compensation, are applied uniformly throughout the Division of Academic Affairs. The number of hours will be determined by the Dean with the approval of the Vice President for Academic Affairs. Projects not approved by the Vice President for Academic Affairs in advance of their start date will not be compensated. Effective with the Spring Semester of 2024, if instructors are required to attend departmental meetings or an orientation, they shall be paid at \$36.00 per hour for a maximum of four (4) hours per term for those meetings. With the approval of the Dean, faculty members may be paid a maximum of twelve (12) additional hours a term for additional instructional related work that does not include classroom time that may include Convocation, Faculty Focus Day, CTL Training, participation in the Framework for Quality Education Badge Programs, and for completion of the collaborative self-review for an approved consensus or template course.. Other required or optional departmental activities are part of the regular workload. Every effort will be made by the College to list various forms of extra compensation to part-time faculty as line items on pay stubs within Workday.
- 13.3 Combined courses (multiple classes meeting at the same time with the same instructor in the same room) shall be considered one course. Courses where the faculty member chooses to provide assistance to a student(s) with individual needs, by electing to access a different modality, shall also be considered one course, as providing assistance to students is an inherent part of an instructor's duties. Likewise, an instructor who chooses not to provide such assistance shall not be deprived of any professional opportunity. Providing assistance to students registered with the Accessibility Services Department who are entitled to an ADA accommodation, is not optional. Team teaching shall be prorated per instructor based upon the total value of the course taught. No increases shall be given for courses that have been completed prior to the effective date of the pay increase.
- 13.4 Instructors will receive the established rate of pay per each course taught and will perform other required duties on campus as determined by their Dean. This shall include all meetings, preparation and other professional duties as determined by the Dean.
- 13.5 Instructors who are absent without approved leave shall be given leave without pay for the period of the absence.

- Instructors will be paid in accordance with their education for lecture hours only. An instructor who attains higher degree status from an accredited institution will be paid at the higher rate only after verification of educational attainment to the satisfaction of CNM. Such verification should be submitted as soon as possible. The higher rate of pay will become effective at the beginning of the term immediately after such verification is received.
- 13.7 The parties agree to a pay rate for each course as listed in the Appendix. CNM shall determine the values of new or revised courses.
- 13.8 Insurance rates for eligible employees will be increased in the same manner as non-represented employees.
- 13.9 Time spent in a properly authorized substitute assignment shall be paid at the rate contained in CNM's Employee Compensation Plan regardless of degree status. After a part-time instructor has worked as a substitute in a particular class for 2 continuous weeks without interruption, the remainder of any such assignment shall be paid on a pro rata basis at the part-time instructor rate of pay as listed in the Appendix. If it is known when the substitute assignment is first authorized, that the assignment will be for at least 2 continuous weeks, the rate of pay as listed in the Appendix will be authorized to coincide with the first day of the assignment.
  - 13.9.1 Substitute pay is authorized by the Governing Board through the Employee Compensation Plan.
  - 13.9.2 Effective with the Spring Semester of 2024, the hourly rate for substitute pay is \$36.00 an hour, as authorized by the Governing Board.
  - 13.9.3 Substitute assignments, by themselves, are not considered the equivalent of a contract renewal, unless the faculty member becomes the instructor of record.
- 13.10 The parties agree that it is desirable to provide instructors as much notice as possible when cancelling a class assignment for the entire term. When no advance notice is provided and the result is that the part-time faculty member reports to campus to teach the class he/she shall receive two (2) hours of pay at the prevailing rate paid to substitutes.
- 13.11 An employee who is assigned to teach at two (2) or more sites on a given day, is eligible to receive mileage reimbursement in accordance with CNM policy, provided the elapsed time between the end of the teaching assignment at the first site, and the start of the teaching assignment at the second site, is not of sufficient duration (more than two hours) to allow the faculty member to engage in non-work related activity.

#### ARTICLE 14: NON-DISCRIMINATION

The parties to this Agreement agree that neither the Union nor the College's respective policies or activities will discriminate against any employee based upon race, age, gender, color, national origin, religion, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation, Union or non-Union affiliation, United States military veteran's status or disability. Employees who file grievances alleging a violation of the provisions of this Article may file the grievance at the step of the grievance procedure immediately above the level of the person alleged to have violated these provisions.

Title IX: Central New Mexico Community College (CNM) does not discriminate based on sex and prohibits sex discrimination in any educational program or activity it operates, in compliance with Title IX. This includes admissions and employment. For inquiries or the Office of Civil Rights. The College's Title IX nondiscrimination policy and grievance procedures are available on the CNM Title IX Policy and Procedures webpage at https://www.cnm.edu/about-cnm/title-ix-policy-and-procedures. Individuals may report conduct that may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX to a Title IX Coordinator or CNM Security. To make a complaint of sex discrimination under CNM's Title IX Policy, employees may contact the appropriate Title IX Coordinator.

#### ARTICLE 15: SENIORITY

- 15.1 Seniority for the purpose of this Agreement shall be defined as the number of terms taught as a part-time faculty member at CNM since June 1, 1993.
- 15.2 Veteran Status In accordance with 15.5 below, veteran status shall be attained for all part-time faculty who have taught six (6) complete terms since June 1, 1993. Time spent substituting or engaged in presenting or instructing in a seminar shall not be counted toward seniority or veteran status.
- 15.3 Loss of Veteran Status a veteran part-time faculty member shall lose veteran status whenever he/she has not taught a course in three consecutive terms. When the Dean or Designee determines that a part-time faculty member will not be rehired for three consecutive terms and shall be dropped from the hiring pool, the part-time faculty member will be notified in person or in writing that they will no longer be assigned courses. The part-time faculty member may request a meeting with the Dean or the Dean's Designee, in accordance with the provisions of sub-article 16.2, and ask for a reason for their non-renewal.
- 15.4 Part of term courses shall count toward the attainment of veteran status as if a full term had been taught. Time spent substituting or engaged in presenting or instructing in a seminar shall not be counted toward seniority.
- 15.5 Veteran status will be determined at the beginning of each term for the purposes of course scheduling only. Only instructors who meet the conditions of veteran status on these dates shall have veteran status during the term of this Agreement.

- 15.6 Veteran part-time faculty (as defined in 15.2) who meet or exceed the goals of their program, and the Strategic Objectives outlined in Articles 18.6 and 18.7, as determined through the evaluation and classroom observation process, shall be given first consideration in course scheduling after full time faculty course assignments have been made but before other part-time faculty. Such consideration does not constitute a guarantee of any particular assignment. The final authority for assignments resides with the Dean or designee.
  - 15.6.1 The final authority when assessing whether a part-time faculty member has met or exceeded the goals of their program and the strategic objectives outlined in Articles 18.6 and 18.7, resides with the Dean or designee. The provisions in Articles 5.4 and 5.6 also apply. This performance assessment is not grievable.
  - 15.6.2 Giving consideration to evaluations, classroom observations, and goal accomplishment, does not negate the other considerations associated with faculty performance assessment related to course scheduling; which includes but is not limited to, a review and assessment of student evaluations, the number of student compliments or complaints, and compliance with administrative requirements.
  - 15.6.3 The parties acknowledge that student enrollment in any given term will impact course scheduling.
    - 15.6.3.1 The parties also recognize that student enrollment is the primary factor in determining course offerings in any term and that management has the right to determine the number of face-to-face classes and online classes assigned to faculty and that these assignments, because they are based on operational need, are not grievable.
    - 15.6.3.2 When the Division of Academic Affairs initiates the assignment process, Full-time Faculty shall be assigned five classes or the equivalent in those Academic Schools where full-time teaching loads are determined in a different manner.
      - 15.6.3.3 After Full-time Faculty receive their assigned classes, Part-time Faculty shall be assigned classes. Every effort will be made to spread course assignments equitably between equally qualified and available part-time faculty. Final approval of the workload is subject to the approval of the Dean or the Dean's designee and none of the class assignments are grievable.
    - 15.6.3.4 After Part-time Faculty are offered requested course assignments, Full-time Faculty will be offered overloads.

- 15.6.3.5 Employees in administration and staff who desire to teach part-time will be assigned a course or courses by the same scheduling procedures as part-time faculty.
- 15.6.4 Veteran status has no relationship to an employee's rate of pay.
- 15.7 The parties agree that the following language regarding the scheduling of classes for Veteran part-time faculty shall be a pilot program. Beginning in the Spring 2025 term, each school shall evaluate the number of Veteran part-time faculty who have received and accepted at least two (2) course assignments which are the equivalent of six (6) credit hours in each of the previous six (6) terms. Beginning with the Fall 2025 term, Deans or Associate Deans will make every effort to assign those Veteran part-time faculty, who meet the criteria outlined above, with at least two (2) course assignments which are the equivalent of six (6) credit hours for the next two academic years, provided past performance, enrollment, and faculty preferences allow for such assignments. Under this pilot program, the 2027 Summer term is the last term in which assignments using these criteria shall be considered.

#### ARTICLE 16: FACULTY RIGHTS

- 16.1 Veteran part-time faculty status shall be attained for all part-time faculty who have taught six (6) terms or more since June 1, 1993 at CNM. The provisions of 15.2 and 15.4 above shall apply to the attainment of veteran's status. Veteran status shall be lost in accordance with the provisions of the Seniority article of this Agreement.
  - 16.1.1 No part-time faculty who has attained veteran status shall be terminated before the end of an academic term without just cause
    - 16.1.1.1"Termination" shall mean an adverse employment action by the College that results in an involuntary severance of an instructor's employment during an academic term and after an employee has signed his/her letter of appointment. This provision does not apply to courses "not making" or the instructor being terminated, or losing course assignments, to accommodate the schedule of a full time faculty member.
- 16.2 Failure to re-hire or renew a contract for any faculty (both veteran and non-veteran) for a subsequent term(s) does not constitute termination, does not require any reason be given to a non-veteran faculty member and cannot be grieved or challenged. A veteran faculty member may request a reason for their non-renewal but cannot grieve or challenge the non-renewal. Performance and conduct issues as determined by the dean and the dean's designee are valid reasons for non-renewal. A faculty member not rehired for three successive terms shall be dropped from the hiring pool and shall be

required to reapply with the College in order to qualify for course assignments. An exception may be allowed to being dropped from the hiring pool at the discretion of the Dean on a case-by-case basis. Faculty who wish to remain in the hiring pool may request continuance when submitting their assignment preference form.

- 16.2.1 Faculty who are ineligible, because of performance and conduct issues, for assignments during the term, are also ineligible for assignments as a substitute, unless an exception is granted by the Dean.
- 16.2.2 Faculty who are ineligible for course assignments or as substitutes, because of deficiencies in performance and conduct, may also be ineligible for other matters such as serving on committees, serving as Department Chairs, or participating in activities that qualify for supplemental pay. The status of general ineligibility is designated as "not in good standing."
- 16.3 Prior to the termination of a veteran part-time faculty during an academic term the faculty member will be provided with written notification of the contemplated termination and the reason(s) for such action.
  - 16.3.1 The veteran faculty member may be suspended without pay for the period required to complete the procedures in this article.
  - 16.3.2 The veteran faculty member will be provided the opportunity to respond to the reasons for the contemplated termination during an academic term prior to the effective date of such action. The response will be provided in a meeting with the veteran faculty member's dean, or in writing, or both at the option of the veteran faculty member.
  - 16.3.3 The veteran faculty member may elect to be accompanied by a Union representative at any meetings held under the provisions of this article except 16.2.
  - 16.3.4 If the veteran faculty member does not respond to the reasons given for any contemplated termination during an academic term within ten (10) calendar days of said notification, the termination shall stand and cannot be the subject of a grievance.
  - 16.3.5 Veteran faculty members who do not agree with the reasons given for the termination during an academic term and who have complied with the provisions above regarding their response to the contemplated dismissal, may file a grievance in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. This is the only circumstance under which a part-

time faculty member can grieve or challenge the discontinuance of their employment with CNM.

- 16.4 The provisions of this article shall not apply if enrollment in an assigned class does not make, or if a veteran part-time faculty is removed from a class in order to accommodate a full-time instructor's schedule. Prior to removing a veteran part-time faculty from a class for the purpose of accommodating a full-time instructor's schedule, consideration will be given to first removing a non-veteran part-time faculty.
- 16.5 Part-time faculty have the rights specifically delineated herein. There shall be no implied rights beyond the specific terms of this article.
- 16.6 Nothing contained in this Article shall prohibit a faculty member from discussing scheduling alternatives with the Department.
- 16.7 An employee may be accompanied by a Union representative at a grievance procedure meeting as provided under this Agreement's grievance procedure, a meeting at which discipline is considered or the employee will receive formal charges against the employee, a meeting which results in the issuance of a written reprimand against the employee, or a meeting initiated by the employee and the supervisor agrees with the employee's request for representation. An employee, supervisor, Union representative, or Human Resource representative may tape record any grievance meeting but must first reveal that the meeting is being recorded.
- 16.8 The involvement of students in employment disputes is prohibited. This provision shall not prevent a student from serving as witness in a faculty member's disciplinary process if the student is integral to the process.

#### ARTICLE 17: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### 17.1 PURPOSE:

The purpose of this grievance procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, equitable solutions to problems that may arise and are subject to this procedure. Unless otherwise prohibited by law, there shall be no other grievance or appeal procedure for members of the bargaining unit other than that contained in this Article. To the extent allowed by the law, the Union and the employees waive any other right they have or may have to challenge any right or benefit covered by this Agreement in another forum. Employees have the right to file grievances over the issues contained in this Agreement.

#### 17.2 DEFINITIONS:

17.2.1 A "grievance" shall be defined as a violation of any provision of this Agreement

has occurred. This definition shall not be interpreted in such a manner as to make an issue grievable or arbitrable simply because an allegation has been made. Either party may raise a grievability or arbitrability issue at any or all levels of this procedure.

- 17.2.2 A "grievant" shall be any faculty member, group of faculty or the Union.
- 17.2.3 "Days" shall mean Monday through Friday except for holidays which are observed by the College.

#### 17.3 PROCEDURES

- 17.3.1 The number of days indicated at each level of this procedure shall be considered maximum and every effort shall be made to expedite the process.
- 17.3.2 Grievance proceedings shall be kept informal at all levels of this procedure. In order to resolve workplace disputes that may not be contract violations or to expedite the resolution of a grievance, communication by email, meetings, or other means to resolve issues outside of the formal filing and review process shall be explored and utilized by mutual agreement at every level of the procedure.
- 17.3.3 If the College fails to comply in writing or with its time limit requirements as set forth under any of the procedure steps, the grievance shall be considered automatically appealed to the next level of the procedure.
- 17.3.4 If the grievant fails to comply with the grievant's time limit requirements as set forth under any of the procedure's steps, the grievance shall be considered null and void.
- 17.3.5 The time limits set forth herein may be extended provided the extension has been mutually agreed upon in writing by the parties.
- 17.3.6 A grievance shall not be considered unless the grievant initiates the grievance no later than fifteen (15) business days after the grievant knew or reasonably should have known of the action which precipitated the grievance and contains, at a minimum, what contractual provision(s) of this collective bargaining agreement is alleged to have been violated, the facts constituting the alleged violation, the date of the incident giving rise to the grievance and the relief requested.
- 17.3.7 No reprisal or retaliation shall be taken against any person who participates in this procedure. Any faculty member who claims they have been subject to reprisal or retaliation without evidence will render the grievance null and void.

- 17.3.8 A grievant may be accompanied by a Union representative as defined in Article 2.10 at any hearing or meeting conducted under this procedure.
- 17.3.9 The parties agree to make good faith efforts to exchange information in order to expedite the process.
- 17.3.10 An employee, acting individually, may present a grievance without the intervention of the Union provided the grievance has been processed in accordance with this procedure. The grievant shall be responsible for notifying the Union in writing that a grievance is being filed. At any hearing or meeting related to a grievance brought individually by an employee, the Union shall be afforded the opportunity to be present and make its views known. Any adjustment made shall be consistent with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 17.3.11 If a grievance affects a group of two or more employees or involves a decision or action by the College which has a departmental or College-wide impact, the Union may submit the grievance on behalf of the affected employees at Level 2 of this procedure. The Union must notify CNM's Labor Relations Officer of the Union's intent to file the grievance at level 2. The parties may submit this grievance at Level 1 if the affected employees have the same supervisor. However, grievances alleging contract violations made by the Dean, the immediate supervisor, or their designees, must be submitted at level 1.
- 17.3.12 All documents related to a grievance shall be maintained in a separate grievance file. This provision does not include disciplinary actions and/or documents that are the subject of a grievance.
- 17.3.13 Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, grievances shall be processed at times other than during scheduled workload hours.
- 17.3.14 Except for informal decisions at Level 1, all decisions shall be submitted in writing at each step of the grievance procedure and the decision shall be submitted to both the grievant and the Union.
- 17.3.15 Grievances shall be filed on forms approved by the parties.
- 17.3.16 The parties shall maintain confidentiality for all grievance proceedings and for documents required by law to be kept confidential.

#### 17.4 LEVEL 1:

17.4.1 The grievant and/or the Union shall submit the grievance in writing to the Department Dean during an informal meeting. To be considered, the

grievance must be filed in accordance with the fifteen (15) business day time limit contained in 17.3.6 of this Agreement and contain at a minimum the provision(s) of this Agreement alleged to be violated, a description of the facts that led the grievant to believe there has been a violation of the Agreement, the dates and known times of the incident that the grievant believes precipitated the grievance, all known witnesses, and the relief requested. The grievant may be accompanied and represented by the grievant's Union representative in accordance with section 17.3.8 herein. If the grievance does not comply with all the provisions of this grievance procedure it shall be null and void. The Dean shall respond in writing to the Union and the grievant no later than fifteen (15) business days after the informal meeting during which the Union and the grievant submitted the written grievance.

#### 17.5 LEVEL 2:

- 17.5.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the results of the Level 1 informal discussion, the grievant or the Union may submit the grievance in writing to the Vice-President of Education and Learning. To be considered, the grievance must be filed within ten (10) business days of the Dean's level 1 decision.
- 17.5.2 No later than ten (10) business days following receipt of the grievant's written grievance, the Vice-President of Education and Learning shall submit a written response to the grievance. The response shall be submitted to the grievant and the Union.
- 17.5.3 If the parties agree the Vice-President of Education and Learning does not have the authority to resolve the grievance, the grievant or the Union may initiate the grievance with the Chief Human Resources Officer at Level 3. However, grievances alleging contract violations made by the Dean, the immediate supervisor, or their designees, must be submitted at level 1. The informal discussion, written grievance and time limit requirements set forth under Levels 1 and 2 above shall be followed if this alternative is used.

#### 17.6 LEVEL 3

- 17.6.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the Vice-President's written disposition, the grievant or the Union may appeal the grievance in writing to the Chief Human Resources Officer or the Chief Human Resources' Officer designee no later than ten (10) business days after the grievant received the Vice-President's response.
- 17.6.2 No later than ten (10) business days following receipt of the grievant's appeal, the Chief Human Resources Officer or the Chief Human

Resources' Officer designee shall conduct a meeting. Each party shall be entitled to bring documents and/or witnesses to the meeting in order to present evidence on their behalf. Each party shall have the right to cross-examine witnesses brought by the other party. Each party shall assume its own costs including the costs of witnesses.

17.6.3 No later than ten (10) business days following the close of the meeting set forth under section 6.2 of this article, the Chief Human Resources Officer or the Chief Human Resources' Officer designee shall submit a written decision on the grievance to the grievant and the Union.

#### 17.7 ARBITRATION

- 17.7.1 If the grievant and the Union are not satisfied with the Level 3 disposition, they may appeal the grievance to arbitration no later than ten (10) business days following receipt of the Level 3 disposition by the grievant. Once the ten (10) days have expired, if no arbitration request has been submitted as provided for herein, the grievance shall be considered null and void, and the College shall have no obligation to schedule grievance meetings or arbitration.
- 17.7.2 The grievance will be appealed to arbitration by the submission of a written request by the Union to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) for a list of seven arbitrators. No special requirements will be requested for an arbitrator without the mutual written agreement of the parties. A copy of the request shall be sent to the College by the Union at the same time the request is filed with the FMCS. Each party retains the right to require a second list of arbitrators from the FMCS.
- 17.7.3 The arbitrator will be selected from a list of seven arbitrators requested from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the list of arbitrators, the parties shall alternately strike names on the list until there is one name remaining who shall be the arbitrator. A coin toss shall determine the party who will strike the first name.
- 17.7.4 The arbitrator shall conduct the hearing as soon as possible following the selection of the arbitrator.
- 17.7.5 Issues related to the arbitrability of a grievance shall be decided by the arbitrator. If the College is challenging the arbitrability of the grievance it shall notify the union and obtain a second list of arbitrators from the FMCS for the limited purpose of determining arbitrability. The parties shall strike names in accordance with the provisions herein. This arbitration on the question of arbitrability must be resolved prior to a hearing on the merits of the grievance, however this provision shall not prevent striking names for

an arbitrator to hear the merits of the grievance. The intent of this provision is to resolve the arbitrability question through the submission of briefs, supported with exhibits and/or affidavits as necessary or as determined by the arbitrator. If the arbitrator concludes that the issue is arbitrable the parties shall schedule the arbitration with the arbitrator selected to hear the merits of the case. If the arbitrator concludes the grievance is not arbitrable the grievance on the merits is dismissed and the issue is null and void.

- 17.7.6 The arbitrator's decision shall be submitted to the College and the Union as soon as possible, but no later than sixty (60) days after the conclusion of the hearing.
- 17.7.7 The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall include the arbitrator's decision, rationale and, if appropriate, the relief. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to expand, or add to, the rights employees or the Union have under the terms of this Agreement.
- 17.7.8 The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the parties subject to appeal in accordance with the Uniform Arbitration Act (Chapt. 44, NM Stat. Ann. 1978).
- 17.7.9 The arbitrator's fees and costs shall be shared equally by the Union and the College. All other expenses shall be assumed by the party incurring the costs, including the cost of witnesses.

## ARTICLE 18: PART-TIME FACUTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND STUDENT SUCCESS

- 18.1 The parties recognize part-time faculty as professional exempt employees whose primary role is to provide instruction to CNM's students. Because part-time faculty have contributions to make to the College, they may in accordance with the provisions of Article 13.2 continue to be allowed compensated opportunities for collaborative involvement with their department deans or designee and colleagues in order to improve instruction.
- 18.2 The parties also recognize that faculty are committed to CNM's mission and goals, with the College's primary focus being on student success. To that end, CNM's objectives are to:
  - a) increase student retention,
  - b) improve graduation rates, and
  - c) strengthen academic performance.
  - d) provide work-based learning,
  - e) prepare students for post-graduation success.
- 18.3 The parties recognize the importance of these goals. Faculty will develop pedagogical and curricular practices consistent with achieving the above objectives

and in accordance with the principles outlined in sub-articles 13.2 and 18.1.

- 18.3.1 In that capacity, the parties acknowledge the importance of faculty to pedagogy and all aspects of classroom instruction. In recognition of that importance, faculty may continue to serve on hiring committees for deans and associate deans.
- 18.3.2 The parties recognize the expectation of academic integrity and rigor of content in accordance with the full exercise of academic freedom or alignment with industry standards. The commitment of the college to student success applies to all faculty.
- 18.4 Faculty are subject matter experts in their respective disciplines who are responsible for teaching and learning. As content experts, the College relies on faculty to address the needs of students and appreciates the efforts put forth by faculty in doing so.
- 18.5 Faculty shall effectively prepare, teach, grade, and assess student learning outcomes in assigned courses, in accordance with the prerogatives, rights, and responsibilities contained in Article 13 on Academic Freedom. This responsibility confers the authority for faculty to participate in the development and review of course and program outcomes and to participate in the development, updating and revision of curriculum.
- 18.6 The parties support the Governing Board's Strategic Objective related to student success entitled the "Framework for Quality Education: Principles and Pathways" (aka the Framework). The Framework is a formal voluntary Faculty Professional Development Program, which will be available to all faculty, at the beginning of the 2023 Fall Semester. The parties recognize the Framework as an important new program designed to help improve student outcomes.
  - 18.6.1 All program details and the administrative procedures associated with the "Framework for Quality Education: Principles and Pathways," will reside in Brightspace and on the CTL Website.
- 18.7 The parties recognize the importance of these goals and expect faculty to work collaboratively with their dean or designees to develop strategies for their classrooms that are consistent with achieving the above objectives. This includes developing plans for improvement whenever a class or group of classes are not meeting goals as they pertain to student success. The parties acknowledge that the Next Level Success for Students Report is an indicator when assessing student success. Faculty shall have access to this report and other measures of student success.
- 18.8 The parties agree to develop and implement a Faculty Information Hub as a pilot program, to serve as a depository for information and data that will assist faculty with their instructional responsibilities as well as health and safety issues. The parties

also recognize the importance of educating part-time faculty about the Faculty Information Hub as a resource for being better informed and engaged in the culture of CNM.

#### ARTICLE 19: TASK TEAMS/COMMITTEES

- 19.1 The parties agree that part-time instructor participation in task teams and committees enhance the mission and operation of CNM. Consequently, part-time faculty, as determined by the dean or the dean's designee, may participate in Academic School committee meetings that address changes in curriculum and changes in job description requirements.
- 19.2 The President of CNM or the President's designee shall determine what task teams or committees will be established and the responsibilities of those task teams or committees.
- 19.3 When the College and the Union agree that it is appropriate for the Union, as exclusive representative, to be represented on a College task team or committee, the Union\_shall be represented. Such Union representation shall commence after the College and Union mutually agree upon the number of Union representative(s).
- 19.4 Union representatives who are members of task teams or committees that are the result of agreements entered into pursuant to sub article 19.3 of this Article shall be appointed by the CNMEU Executive Council.
- 19.5 The College and the Union agree that faculty committees and task teams may continue to operate according to policy.

#### ARTICLE 20: JOB DESCRIPTIONS

- 20.1 The parties agree that job descriptions are intended to provide a general description of the duties to be performed by the incumbent, not an all-inclusive list of duties. Part-time faculty members are responsible for performing the work assigned to them as long as it falls within the general description of those duties.
- 20.2 During the life of this Agreement, the College may modify job descriptions on an as-needed basis. The Human Resources Department will provide the Union copies of the modified job descriptions in a timely manner when requested.
- 20.3 Upon request by the Union, the parties shall meet to discuss modifications to job descriptions. The Union may make recommendations regarding the content of modified job descriptions and duties.
- 20.4 If, during the term of this Agreement, the Union develops concerns that an instructor is being assigned duties as a regular assignment that are not reasonably

related to the instructor's job description, the issue may be raised for resolution by the Faculty Management Committee.

#### ARTICLE 21: WORK SCHEDULES

- 21.1 Developing the master class schedule is the responsibility of management.
- 21.2 Management may change work schedules in order to meet the operational needs of the College.
- 21.3 In those departments where management has historically consulted with part-time faculty regarding teaching assignments, management will make reasonable efforts to continue this practice.
- 21.4 In order to assist CNM's faculty scheduling process, faculty are prohibited from trading schedules or arranging alternative scheduling without prior approval from the Dean or designee. Those faculty who wish to trade schedules must receive the Dean's or designee's authorization prior to initiating discussions with other faculty.
- 21.5 During the term of this Agreement the parties agree to use the Faculty

  /Management Committee to address concerns that may arise regarding the scheduling of part-time faculty. This provision also applies to part-time faculty working in multiple departments.
- 21.6 Qualified part-time faculty may teach courses in multiple departments at the College with proper approval. Instructors who teach in more than one school must notify the Deans of all schools of their total campus teaching assignments within two (2) business days of receiving such notification of receiving an assignment in an additional school. Final approval of the total workload is subject to the approval of the deans of all of the affected departments. The provisions shall not be interpreted in such a manner as to prohibit any particular workload.
- 21.7 The parties acknowledge that the definition of part-time faculty contained in this Agreement (Article 2 Section 2.5) was created by the parties to eliminate workload limitations imposed simply because of someone's status as part-time faculty. This language is included for informational purposes only, not to change the original understanding of the parties regarding this subject. Final approval of the total workload has always been, and continues to be, subject to the approval of the deans.

#### ARTICLE 22: HEALTH AND SAFETY

22.1 The College shall continue to provide healthy and safe working conditions for all employees.

- 22.2 The College shall continue to comply with all health and safety laws, rules and regulations promulgated by appropriate regulatory agencies.
- 22.3 Part-time instructors may temporarily remove from class any student who threatens, intimidates or harasses either the instructor or other students and disrupts the classroom and the learning process. The instructor may verbally direct the student to leave the classroom, but in the event that the student refuses, the instructor may call CNM Security.
  - 22.3.1 The College will conduct an investigation of any such actions and may prohibit the student from returning to class until a hearing has been held.
  - 22.3.2 If a part-time faculty member continues to feel intimidated and/or harassed or is fearful, the College will attempt to provide a mutually agreeable plan to insure the safety of the faculty member which may include a security escort on campus.
- 22.4 The parties agree they have a mutual interest in improving and upgrading faculty space, facilities, and resources. This includes developing and/or maintaining programs for working parents. The parties further agree to assess the status and plans in these areas during the faculty management committee meeting in order to make recommendations for improvement.

#### ARTICLE 23: PARKING

- 23.1 Part-time faculty will be given an opportunity 10 calendar days before students to purchase parking permits for paid on-campus lots.
  - Each Department Dean shall have the discretion to request up to three Departmental Special Parking Permits per year to assist part-time faculty who receive "last minute" course assignments and experience parking fee encumbrances as a result of the "last minute" assignment. The Dean or the Dean's designee shall determine whether a part-time faculty member is eligible to use the Departmental Special Parking Permit.
- 23.2 The parties agree that during the course of this agreement the College will study the feasibility of extending the College's payroll deduction permit purchase system to part-time faculty. The parties also agree to study the feasibility of developing a system that allows employees to park in multiple lots.

#### ARTICLE 24: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

24.1 Unless limited by the specific provisions of a collective bargaining agreement, the employer reserves the right to:

- 24.1.1 direct the work of, hire, promote, assign, transfer, demote, suspend, discharge or terminate public employees;
- 24.1.2 determine qualifications for employment and the nature and content of personnel examinations;
- 24.1.3 take actions as may be necessary to carry out the mission of the employer in emergencies; and
- 24.2 The employer shall retain all other rights not expressly abridged by a collective bargaining agreement.
- 24.3 Management retains full right and authority to manage and administer the College and its staff. This includes, but is not limited to, establishment and management of properties, resources and facilities; determination of the administrative organization; determination of the financial policies of the College; the appointment, direction, evaluation, discipline, and supervision of employees; the right to determine educational programs, the modality of course offerings, curriculum and services of the College; and the number and location of job positions required. These rights are abridged only by the express specific terms of this Agreement.

CNM retains all rights not specifically limited by this Agreement. These rights shall not be subjugated or diminished in any way by any expressed or implied duty to bargaining unless it is specifically detailed in this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 25: CONTRACTING OUT

- 25.1 In the event CNM contracts out or privatizes instruction that is referenced in Appendix A (Credit Hour Methodology for the Calculation of Course Pay) and is not a function of Ingenuity Inc. or the Work Force Training Center and such contracting out or privatization results in the loss of positions for part-time instructors who have taught three (3) or more terms at CNM, the parties shall discuss the matter in the Faculty Management Committee. CNM shall provide the Union thirty (30) calendar days' notice of such impending action.
- 25.2 The College has the right and responsibility to determine what work is to be performed and by whom it shall be performed.

#### ARTICLE 26: UNION RIGHTS

- 26.1 The following rights shall be granted exclusively to the Union and shall not be granted to any other labor organization.
- 26.2 The College shall provide the Union payroll deduction for membership dues for employees who authorize the deductions in the amount designated by the Union.

The deductions shall be made provided the deduction request is submitted to the College's payroll office on a form authorized by the Union. The deductions shall be made from employee paychecks for each pay period. The authorizations may be submitted to the payroll office at any time, and deductions will commence on the following payday. The deductions shall be transmitted to the Union within a reasonable period of time following each pay date at which the deductions were made. Employee authorizations shall be continuous and may be terminated at any time thirty (30) days prior to the deduction termination. The Union shall notify the Payroll Office and the bargaining unit employees of any change in the deduction amounts at least ten (10) days prior to the effective date of the new amount. When a change is implemented, deductions for bargaining unit members who previously granted authorization, will continue at the new rate, unless the employee specifically opts out. The Union agrees to render the College and Governing Board harmless for any action resulting from compliance with this provision.

- 26.3 The amount of deduction to be made from each employee's wages will be certified in writing by the Union and shall be a fixed dollar amount per active pay period. In the event the amount of dues changes, the College shall implement such change within a reasonable time period. In the event an employee does not work for CNM for a period of time (becomes inactive) and, as a result, does not receive a paycheck, upon rehire dues deduction shall resume at the same amount that was being deducted prior to the time the employee became inactive.
  - 26.3.1 The parties agree that is it the employee's responsibility to ensure that dues are being deducted from their from their paychecks, and alert both the College and the CNMEU Executive Council if that is not the case, so the error can be rectified.
- 26.4 Employee deductions may be terminated at any time by an employee contacting the College's payroll office and notifying the Union.
- 26.5 The Union, its membership and the individual members of the bargaining unit agree to hold the College safe and harmless for any legal action resulting from compliance with the provision for dues deduction. The Union shall indemnify the College for any legal action regarding this issue.
- 26. 6 The College agrees to allow the Union the right to use email at the College in accordance with Section 10-7E-15 subsection H of the Public Employee Bargaining Act and bulletin boards for the distribution and posting of Union information. Such information will be distributed and/or posted by Union representatives. For email communication utilizing the CNM email system, the Union agrees to provide a copy in advance to CNM's Labor Relations Officer. Only communications approved by the CNMEU Executive Council will be accepted by the CNM Labor Relations Officer. Email communication between a Union representative and an individual bargaining unit employee shall be subject to all provisions in this article. Nothing inflammatory, derogatory or disruptive to good labor-management relations shall be contained in any email, written documents, or materials to be distributed and/or posted to include communications with any College student media. Additionally, College resources shall not be used for any union activity or

- issue, including but not limited to, political issues, a campaign for an individual candidate, or organization, unless specifically authorized elsewhere in this agreement. In the event the College believes a violation of this provision has occurred it shall be brought to the attention of the CNMEU Executive Council and the distribution in question will be halted.
- 26.7 Local Union representatives who are CNM employees are eligible for extended leave without pay to conduct Union business. Such leave may be approved if it does not present an undue hardship or expense to the College and subject to the following conditions:
  - 26.7.1 Written notice must be submitted at least fourteen (14) calendar days in advance of the time of the requested leave.
  - 26.7.2 The Union representative shall suffer no loss of seniority.
  - 26.7.3 The Union representative shall be eligible to continue group benefits as contained in this Agreement, provided he/she pays both the employee's and the College's portion of the premium cost.
  - 26.7.4 The Union representative shall be eligible for course assignment in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 26.8 The Union or any employee may not solicit membership while the employees are on duty.
- 26.9 The Union shall be allowed to use meeting areas in College buildings at no cost to the Union provided advanced scheduling has been made with the College and provided the meetings do not conflict with scheduled events or the College's facilities policy. Attendance at these meetings shall not occur during duty time.
- 26.10 The Union shall have the right to identify worksite representative for each College campus where bargaining unit employees are present. The College shall recognize these representatives as Union spokespersons at the worksites. The CNMEU Executive Council shall inform the College's Labor Relations Officer in writing of the names of the Union representatives and keep such notification current. Someone whose name has not been provided in writing shall not receive recognition as a Union representative.
  - 26.10.1 Worksite representatives may distribute Union materials and conduct Union business so long as this activity is done on non-duty time and does not interfere with the representative's duty time or the duty time of other employees. Materials distributed will comply with the provisions of section 26.6.
  - 26.10.2 Worksite representatives shall have the right on non-duty time to bring to the attention of the worksite supervisors concerns over the administration

of the Agreement and other concerns affecting the bargaining unit employees.

- 26.11 The College shall provide to the Union, in an editable digital file format agreed to by the Union the following information for each employee of the bargaining unit: (1) a listing of all bargaining unit employees arranged according to hire date. (2) the employee's name and hire date; (3) contact information, including (a) cellular, home and work telephone; (b) means of electronic communication, including work and personal electronic mail addresses; and (c) home address or personal mailing address; (4) employment information, including the employee's job title, salary and work location. The College shall provide the information described above to the Union within ten (10) days from the date of hire for newly hired employees in the bargaining unit. The Union shall include in each communication sent to employees an opportunity for an employee to be removed from Union communications.
- 26.12 The Union will be provided 30 minutes, without loss of leave or pay, to meet with new employees or make a presentation during new employee orientation, at a time determined by the College. The parties agree that this provision does not constitute approval for contravening established policies that govern an employee's obligation when the employee is also a Union Representative, to provide instructional support to students as scheduled.
- 26.13 CNM's President's Council generally meets once a month on the first Wednesday of the month. The Union President or the Union President's designated Executive Committee member, may attend President's Council meetings as a means of ensuring that the Union is informed of issues that may impact bargaining unit members.

#### ARTICLE 27: FACULTY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

#### 27.1 Purpose

A Faculty-Management Committee (FMC) is established. The purpose of the FMC is to promote cooperation between the parties to solve issues at the lowest possible level, not to continue the negotiation process. Topics appropriate for discussion during FMC include:

- specific recommendations regarding systemic workload and/or compensation concerns.
- faculty issues related to professional needs;
- issues related to terms and conditions of employment that may arise outside the regular negotiation cycle.

The topics raised at the FMC will be communicated by the President's representatives to the Vice President for Academic Affairs for further discussion and consideration. A written response will be provided to the Union's FMC representation within a reasonable amount of time not to exceed thirty (30) days.

#### 27.2 Composition and Procedures

Either party may request an FMC meeting. The FMC shall be composed of three (3) representatives appointed by the College President and three (3) representatives appointed by the Union President. Additional parties may attend on a case-by-case basis. By mutual agreement, the FMC may establish rules and procedures provided they do not conflict with any provision of this Agreement.

27.3 The parties agree to discuss applications of this Agreement in the FMC in order to attempt to reach mutually agreeable interpretations.

#### ARTICLE 28: AGREEMENT CONTROL

- 28.1 If any College policy, regulation or directive is in specific conflict with any provision of this Agreement, the Agreement shall control.
- 28.2 This Agreement may only be modified or waived through a written agreement between the College and the Union.
- 28.3 The parties (CNM, the Union, and bargaining unit employees) will abide by the conditions of this Agreement and all other CNM policies, rules, regulations, and practices. CNM reserves the right to amend said policies, rules, regulations and practices so long as such amendment does not specifically conflict with any provision of this Agreement. College policies, rules, regulations and practices other than this Agreement are not subject to the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement. Said policies, rules, regulations and practices shall not be interpreted as being an extension of this Agreement. If this Agreement is silent on a particular issue it shall be considered a retained management right and is not subject to the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this does not prohibit the Union from raising issues covered by these policies in negotiation for a successor agreement, or in the Faculty Management Committee during the term of this Agreement.
- 28.4 Non-compliance with the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered a violation of College policy.

#### ARTICLE 29: COMPLETE AGREEMENT

- 29.1 The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete and only agreement between the parties.
- 29.2 Each party has negotiated on all issues identified for negotiations and such negotiations have led to this Agreement.
- 29.3 No additional negotiations will be conducted on any item, whether contained herein or not, except by mutual agreement of the parties.
- 29.4 This Agreement replaces any and all previous Agreements between the parties.

29.5 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to all proper subjects of collective bargaining and that all such subjects have been discussed and negotiated upon and the agreements contained in this Agreement were arrived at after the free exercise of such rights and opportunities; therefore, the Employer and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

Prior to changing any employee wages, hours, or other terms or conditions of employment, the College shall notify the Union of its intentions. No later than five (5) days after being notified by the College of its intentions, the Union may request to meet and confer with the College regarding the change. The College shall meet with the Union to discuss the Union's concerns and/or recommendations. This commitment to meet shall not be interpreted in a manner that prevents the College from taking action after meeting with the Union.

#### ARTICLE 30: SEVERABILITY

30.1 If any provision of this Agreement is determined by final order of a court or administrative agency with jurisdiction over the parties to be contrary to law, the affected provision shall be rendered null and void. All other provisions not affected by the illegal provision shall remain in full force and effect.

#### ARTICLE 31: NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

- 31.1 Negotiations will be conducted at locations, times and dates that are mutually acceptable to the parties.
- 31.2 Negotiations will be conducted in closed sessions. This provision prohibits the public airing of any issues or the progress in the negotiations. Because negotiations are conducted in closed sessions, no press releases or public statements regarding progress on negotiations shall be made without the mutual consent of the parties. The parties reserve the right to communicate with their constituencies in a manner consistent with preserving the confidential nature of the negotiations. Communications with executive decision makers and the larger constituencies shall only be conducted in a good faith manner that does not damage the relationship between the negotiating parties and the bargaining process. In the event of an impasse, the parties will confer regarding press releases until the fact-finder has issued a decision.

- 31.3 Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, the Union and the College shall each identify a maximum of eight (8) members of their respective negotiation teams at the commencement of negotiations.
- 31.4 Recesses, caucuses or study sessions may be called by either side at any time.
- 31.5 All tentative agreements shall be reduced to writing by the parties and initialed by their respective negotiators designated to do so. Tentative agreements shall remain tentative until the entire agreement is agreed to by the parties and ratified in accordance with the procedures identified by each of the parties. Tentative agreements are conditional and may be withdrawn should subsequent discussions change either team's understanding of the language as it relates to another part of the Agreement.
- 31.6 Final agreement on a collective bargaining agreement shall be reached when each side obtains ratification of the proposed agreement from its respective constituencies.
- 31.7 Either party may initiate negotiations for a successor agreement by providing the opposite party written notice of its intent to commence negotiations no sooner than one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days nor later than sixty (60) calendar days before the expiration of this Agreement.
- 31.8 Additional negotiation procedures and ground rules may be negotiated by the parties at the commencement of negotiations.
- 31.9 In the event an impasse is reached, and mediation is initiated by either party, the party who declares an impasse shall, within 10 business days from the date of declaration, provide to the other party a written list of the issues that remain unresolved. The list can include only mandatory subjects of bargaining. The other party shall provide a written list of their issues within 10 days of receipt of the issues submitted by the party that declared impasse. Only the items on these lists will be discussed in mediation.
- 31.10 In the event mediation does not resolve the impasse either party may request fact finding. The party requesting fact finding shall, within 10 business days from the date of requesting fact finding, provide the other party a written list of the issues for fact finding. The other party shall provide a written list of their issues within 10 days of receipt of the issues submitted by the party requesting fact finding. No issue that was not the subject of mediation can be in the fact finding process without the mutual agreement of the parties. Neither party may alter its proposal after the submission of this document.
  - 31.10.1 The fact finder will be selected from a list of seven fact finders requested from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the list of fact finders, the parties shall alternately strike

- names on the list until there is one name remaining who shall be the fact finder. The moving party to the fact finding shall strike the first name.
- 31.10.2 The fact finder shall conduct the hearing as soon as possible following the selection of the fact finder.
- 31.10.3 The fact finder's decision shall be submitted to the College and the Union no later than sixty (60) days after the conclusion of the hearing.
- 31.10.4 The fact finder's decision shall be in writing and shall include the fact finder's decision, rationale and, if appropriate, the relief. The fact finder shall not have the authority to expand, or add to, the rights employees or the Union have under the terms of this Agreement.
- 31.10.5 The fact finder's fees and costs shall be shared equally by the Union and the College. All other expenses shall be assumed by the party incurring the costs, including the cost of the witnesses.
- 31.11 Within sixty (60) calendar days after the conclusion of the fact-finding hearing, the fact finder shall recommend only the last best final total package (as submitted in accordance with 31.10 above) offer of one of the parties.

#### ARTICLE 32: NO STRIKE

- 32.1 No employee or labor organization shall engage in a strike. No employee labor organization shall cause, instigate, encourage or support a strike. The employer shall not cause, instigate, or engage in any employee lockout.
- 32.2 In addition to any remedy either of them may have under the terms of this policy, the employer may apply to the appropriate New Mexico District Court for injunctive relief to end a strike and an exclusive representative of public employees affected by a lockout may apply for injunctive relief to end a lockout.
- 32.3 Any labor organization that causes, instigates, encourages or supports an employee strike, walkout or slowdown may be decertified as the exclusive representative for the appropriate bargaining unit by the board and shall be barred from serving as the exclusive representative of any bargaining unit of employees of the employer for a period of one year.

#### ARTICLE 33: AGREEMENT COPIES

33.1 After ratification of this agreement by all parties involved, the College will post the agreement on the CNM web page and provide the Union with electronic copies in PDF and MS Word formats for Union use.

#### ARTICLE 34: ACADEMIC FREEDOM

The parties recognize that within the parameters established by state and federal law and College and the approved curriculum, faculty members shall have the right and responsibility to:

- 34.1 provide an unbiased, evidence based presentation of topics relevant to the course content and appropriate to the students assigned to the instructor,
- 34.2 assess the performance of students consistent with the approved curriculum,
- 34.3 final student grades shall not be changed without consultation with the Instructor of Record for the course.

### ARTICLE 35: TERM OF AGREEMENT

- 35.1 This Agreement shall become effective upon signature of the parties and shall remain in full force and effect until December 31, 2027. During the month of July 2025 and July 2026, either party may reopen negotiations on the limited issues of a wage increase, and two other non-economic items per party.
- 35.2 If the parties do not open negotiations during the intervening years of the contract as delineated in the paragraph immediately above, increases approved by the Board will be provided in accordance with the Governing Board resolution.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto affix the signatures of their respective officers and representatives.

CNM Employees Unio	n	Central New M	<b>1</b> exico
Part-time Faculty		Community Co	ollege
Step an Andrews	8-25 Date	Tracy Harrizler	1/8/25 Date
nterim Union President		President	
Que Is C	1/8/25	Thomas a. Mans	uny 1-8-2025
Sue Taylor	Date	Thomas A. Manning	Date
Interim Union Vice President		Chief Negotiator	

# This Page Intentionally Left Blank

#### Appendix A

## Credit Hour Methodology for the Calculation of Part-time Faculty Course Pay

As a result of the 2018 part-time faculty negotiations, CNM moved from a contact-hour based methodology for the calculation of course pay, to a methodology based on credit-hour.

Course pay will now be calculated based on credit hour, degree status, and tier, for lecture hour courses. Non-lecture courses (labs and studios) will be based on credit hour and tier only. With the conversion to the credit hour methodology for the calculation of course pay, part-time faculty in steps A and B will be combined into a single category designated as Tier 2. All other part-time faculty (those in steps E and F) will be combined into a single category designated as Tier 1.

The per credit hours rates (PCH) for lecture, lab, and studio are listed in the chart below. The most recent change will be effective at the beginning of the 2025 Spring Semester.

Contractual agreements (classes assigned) through Workday - Period Activity Pay establish standard criteria for the Human Resources Department to process faculty load and compensation on a term-by-term basis. This allows part-time faculty to accept and acknowledge courses online through Workday.

#### Part-Time – 1 class per year to remain in 'active' pool

- No term requirement, but can teach 1-5 classes per term for all three terms
- May be offered 4-5 classes per term

Course Type & Faculty Degree	Tier 1	Tier 2
Lecture		
Bachelor's Educated (or Less)	\$1,018.52	\$1,210.41
Master's Educated	\$1,145.69	\$1,336.45
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)	\$1,272.86	\$1,463.62
Lab Includes all Laboratory, Practicum, Cooperative/Internship/Externship, Field Experience, Clinical, and Clinical Intensive Coursework.	\$3,371.22	\$3,815.19
Studio	\$1,845.14	\$2,099.49

<sup>\*</sup>The compensation for any course is based on either Tier One or Tier Two qualification and on any one of these four factors: Lecture Only, Lecture & Lab Combination, Lab Only, or Studio Only.

Feel free to contact your CNM Employees Union representatives or CNM Human Resources Compensation with any questions you may have about your course compensation. Limited examples of courses in both Tiers One and Two in each college have been provided to help part-time faculty become familiar with this structure.

Academic School:		В	u	siness,	Ho	spital	ity	& Tran	sp	ortatio	on	l		
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY		ľ											
Course:	ACCT 1135	Lecture	П	Per Credit	П	Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	Ī	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	n	\$1,018.52	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,055.56
Master's		3	*	\$1,145.69	+	0	R	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,437.07
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,272.86	+	0	R	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,818.58
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY		ŀ	-										
Course:	ACCT 1135	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	×	\$1,210.41	+	0	R	\$3,815.19	+	0	R	\$2,099.49	=	\$3,631.23
Master's		3	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	٠	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	Ξ	\$4,009.35
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,463.62	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	٠	\$2,099.49	=	\$4,390.86
Tier One:	Lecture & Lab													
Course:	CULN 1010	Lecture	Т	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	_	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		2	*	\$1,018.52	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$5,408.26
Master's		2	*	\$1,145.69	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$5,662.60
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		2	*	\$1,272.86	+	1	×	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$5,916.94
Tier Two:	Lecture & Lab	-				-		-		-		_		
Course:	CULN 1010	Lecture	П	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		2	*	\$1,210.41	+	1	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$6,236.01
Master's		2	•	\$1,336.45	+	1	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$6,488.09
		2		\$1,463.62		1		\$3,815.19		0		\$2,099.49	=	\$6,742.43

Effective 01/13/2025 Appendix A

Academic School:	Education														
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY				Ш										
Course:	EDUC 1120	Lecture	П	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course	
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours	١.,	Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation	
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	*	\$1,018.52	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,055.56	
Master's		3	*	\$1,145.69	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	٠	\$1,845.14	Ξ	\$3,437.07	
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,272.86	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,818.58	
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY										H				
Course:	EDUC 1120	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit		Total Course	
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation	
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	n	\$1,210.41	+	0		\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$3,631.23	
Master's		3	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$4,009.35	
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3		\$1,463.62	+	0		\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2.099.49	=	\$4,390.86	

Academic School:				Health,	We	lines	s a	& Public	Si	afety				
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY													
Course:	HLTH 1001	Lecture		Per Credit	П	Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	Π	Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour	Ш	Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		1	•	\$1,018.52	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$1,018.52
Master's		1	*	\$1,145.69	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$1,145.69
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	٠	\$1,272.86	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14	=	\$1,272.86
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY													
Course:	HLTH 1001	Lecture	ŀ	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit	11	Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		1	*	\$1,210.41	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$1,210.41
Master's		1	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$1,336.45
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	*	\$1,463.62	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	•	\$2,099.49	=	\$1,463.62
Tier One:	Lecture & Lab					-								
Course:	LEA 1001	Lecture	H	Per Credit		Lab	Н	Per Credit		Studio	t	Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	-	1	*	\$1,018.52	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	•		=	\$4,389.74
Master's		1	*	\$1,145.69	+	1	n	\$3,371.22	+	0	*		=	\$4,516.91
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	A	\$1,272.86	+	1		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$4,644.08
					_		_				_			
Tier Two:	Lecture & Lab													
Course:	LEA 1001	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		1	*	\$1,210.41	+	1	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$5,025.60
Master's		1	*	\$1,336.45	+	1	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	Ξ	<b>\$</b> 5,151.64
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	*	\$1,463.62	+	1	A	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$5,278.81
Tier One:	Lab ONLY						Ī							
Course:	COS 1092	Lecture	T	Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit	$\overline{}$	Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	5	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	•	0	*	\$1,018.52	+	5	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845,14	Ξ	\$16,856.10
Master's		0	*	\$1,145.69	+	5	*	\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$16,856,10
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0	٠	\$1,272.86	+	5	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$16,856.10
Tier Two:	Lab ONLY					_					_			
Course:	COS 1092	Lecture	-	Per Credit	_	Lab	_	Per Credit	_	Studio		Per Credit	_	Total Course
		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Credits:	5			\$1,210.41	+	Hours 5	*	\$3,815.19				\$2,099.49	1-	· ·
Bachelor's (or Less) Master's		0							+	0				\$19,075.95
		0		\$1,336.45	+	5	*	\$3,815.19	+	0		\$2,099.49		\$19,075.95 \$10,075.06
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0		\$1,463.62	+	5		\$3,815.19	+	0	_	\$2,099.49	=	<b>\$</b> 19,075.95

Academic School:						Liber	al	Arts						
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY						10							
Course:	ENGL 1110	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	•	\$1,018.52	+	0	R	\$3,371.22	+	0	٠	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,055.56
Master's		3	*	\$1,145.69	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,437.07
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	٠	\$1,272.86	+	0	•	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,818.58
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY													
Course:	ENGL 1110	Lecture	П	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	1	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	*	\$1,210.41	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$3,631.23
Master's		3	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	Ξ	\$4,009.35
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	4	\$1,463.62	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$4,390.86
Bachelor's (or Less) Master's Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	:

Academic School:				watn,	50	ience	O	Engine	er	ing				
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY						Ш							
Course:	GEOG 1110	Lecture	1	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	Π	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	R	\$1,018.52	+	0	٠	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,055.56
Master's		3	*	\$1,145.69	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,437.07
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	R	\$1,272.86	+	0	•	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,818.58
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY													
Course:	GEOG 1110	Lecture	Т	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	Т	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3		\$1,210,41	+	0	ż	\$3,815,19	+	0	±	\$2,099,49	Ξ	\$3,631.23
Master's		3	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49		\$4,009.35
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	R	\$1,463.62	+	0		\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49		\$4,390.86
Tier One:	Lecture & Lab		Ī					-			-	= -		
Course:	BIOL 2710	Lecture	-	Per Credit		Lab	Н	Per Credit		Studio	H	Per Credit	Н	Total Course
Credits:	4	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		2	e	\$1,018.52	+	2	٠	\$3,371.22	+	0	Te.	\$1,845.14	Ē	\$8,779.48
Master's		2	*	\$1,016.52	+	2		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$9,033.82
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		2		\$1,272.86	+	2		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$9,288.16
Documate (or reminal begree)				\$1,272.00	Ť			\$3,371.22	Ť	U		\$1,040.14		45,200.10
Tier Two:	Lecture & Lab		-		-	-			H		t		H	
Course:	BIOL 2710	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	4	Hours	П	Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	_	2	*	\$1,210.41	+	2	A	\$3,815.19	+	0	Ŕ	\$2,099.49	=	\$10,051.20
Master's		2	*	\$1,336.45	+	2	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$10,303.28
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		2	*	\$1,463.62	+	2	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$10,557.62
Tier One:	Lab ONLY													
Course:	PHYS 1115L	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit	-	Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0	*	\$1.018.52	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1.845.14	=	\$3,371.22
Master's		0	n	\$1,016.52	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	Ť	0		\$1,845.14		\$3,371.22
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0	*	\$1,272.86	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,371.22
Tier Two:	Lab ONLY							-		= =				= =
Course:	PHYS 1115L	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab	-	Per Credit	_	Studio	_	Per Credit	_	Total Course
	1													
Credits:	1	Hours	*	Hour #1 210 41		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour	-	Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0	*	\$1,210.41	+	1		\$3,815.19		0		\$2,099.49		\$3,815.19
Master's		0		\$1,336.45	+	1			+	0		\$2,099.49		\$3,815.19
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0	1	\$1,463.62	+	1	_	\$3,815.19	+	0	_	\$2,099.49	Ξ	\$3,815.19

<b>Academic School:</b>				Nurs	in	g & Pa	ati	ent Sup	ро	rt				
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY													
Course:	PN 1110	Lecture	Ī	Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	Т	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		3	¢	\$1,018.52	+	0	n	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14	Ξ	\$3,055.56
Master's		3	٠	\$1,145.69	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	٠	\$1,845.14	=	\$3,437.07
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,272.86	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	٠	\$1,845.14	Ξ	\$3,818.58
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY		1				1							
Course:	PN 1110	Lecture	ľ	Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	-	3	*	\$1,210.41	+	0	*	\$3.815.19	+	0		\$2,099.49	=	\$3,631.23
Master's		3		\$1,336.45	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0			=	\$4,009.35
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		3	*	\$1,463.62	+	0	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	n		=	\$4,390.86
Tier One:	Lecture & Lab		-											
Course:	NMNC 1235	Lecture	-	Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	-	Per Credit	Н	Total Course
Credits:	4	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	*	1	*	\$1,018.52	+	3	٠	\$3,371.22	+	0	A	\$1,845.14	=	\$11,132,18
Master's		1		\$1,145.69	+	3		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$11,259.35
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	R	\$1,272.86	+	3	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	*	\$1,845.14		\$11,386.52
Document (or remains begies)				\$1,212.00	Ė	-		<b>\$0,071.22</b>				\$1,010.11		411,000.02
Tier Two:	Lecture & Lab													
Course:	NMNC 1235	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	4	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		1	R	\$1,210.41	+	3	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$12,655.98
Master's		1	ŵ	\$1,336.45	+	3	٠	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$12,782.02
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	*	\$1,463.62	+	3	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	*	\$2,099.49	=	\$12,909.19
Tier One:	Lab ONLY													
Course:	BPCS 1092	Lecture	Ť	Per Credit		Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit	П	Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0	*	\$1,018,52	+	1		\$3,371.22	+	0	*		=	\$3,371.22
Master's		0		\$1,145.69	+	1	*	\$3,371.22	+	0				\$3,371.22
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0		\$1,272.86	+	1	٠		+	0	*	\$1,845.14	-	\$3,371.22
Tier Two:	Lab ONLY													
Course:	BPCS 1092	Lecture	Т	Per Credit	_	Lab	П	Per Credit		Studio	_	Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0	R	\$1,210.41	+	1	*	\$3,815.19	+	0	n	\$2,099.49	=	\$3.815.19
Master's		0		\$1,336.45	+	1		\$3,815.19		0	*	\$2,099.49		\$3,815.19
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0	n	\$1,463.62	+	1	*	\$3,815.19		0	R	\$2,099.49		\$3,815.19
and musical for sequence college)				\$1,100.02	Ť	–		20,010.10		•		7-1-00.10		40,0 (00.0

Academic School:				SI	kill	ed Tra	ad	es & Ar	\$					
Tier One:	Lecture ONLY										ы			
Course:	OSH 2006	Lecture		Per Credit	П	Lab		Per Credit	П	Studio	П	Per Credit	-1	Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)	1	1	ľ	\$1,018.52	+	0	1	\$3,371.22	+	0	٠	\$1,845.14	=	\$1,018.52
Master's		1		\$1,145.69	+	0		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$1,145.69
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1	*	\$1,272.86	+	0	•	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14		\$1,272.86
Tion Time	Landaus OM V		ï						_					
Tier Two:	Lecture ONLY		_	B - 6 - 19	_		_	0.0.15	Н	A	Н		Н	
Course:	OSH 2006	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	1	Hours	Ļ	Hour	_	Hours		Hour		Hours	_	Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		1		\$1,210.41	+	0	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	•		=	\$1,210.41
Master's		1	*	\$1,336.45	+	0	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	•	4-,	=	\$1,336.45
Doctorale (or Terminal Degree)		1	•	\$1.463.62	+	0	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	•	\$2,099.49	2	\$1,463.62
Tier One:	Lecture & Lab			-				- :	Π					
Course:	WELD 1250	Lecture		Per Credit	-	Lab	-	Per Credit	_	Studio	H	Per Credit	_	Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Gredits: Bachelor's (or Less)		1		\$1,018.52	+	1.333	4	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14	-	\$5,512.36
Master's		1		\$1,016.52		1.333		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$5,639.53
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1		\$1,272.86	Ţ	1.333		\$3,371.22	+	0		\$1,845.14		\$5,766.70
Ductariae (or remina begree)		'		31,272.00	Ľ	1.333		\$3,311.22	_			31,043.14		33,700.70
Tier Two:	Lecture & Lab													
Course:	WELD 1250	Lecture	_	Per Credit	П	Lab	_	Per Credit	П	Studio	_	Per Credit	_	Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Lass)	<del> </del>	- 1	٩	\$1,210.41	+	1.333	9	\$3,815.19	+	0	۰		=	\$6,296.06
Master's		1		\$1,336.45	+	1.333		\$3,815.19	+	0			=	\$6,422.10
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		1		\$1,463.62	+	1.333	•	\$3,815.19	+	0	•		Ξ	\$6,549.27
			Ī								-		_	
Tier One:	Lab ONLY		L		_				_		_			
Course:	CARP 1892	Lecture		Per Credit		Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours	Ļ	Hour		Hours		Hour	_	Hours	_	Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0		01,010.02	+	2	•	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	V 1,0 1011	=	\$6,742.44
Master's		0	*	\$1,145.69	+	2	*	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14		\$6,742.44
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0		\$1,272.86	+	2	•	\$3,371.22	+	0	•	\$1,845.14	=	\$6,742.44
Tion True:	Lab ONLY		Ì											
Tier Two:	Lab ONLY CARP 1892	Lactic	1	Per Credit	_	1.44		Des Conti	-	ChE-	÷	0	_	Tatal Oc. 1
	0.00	Lecture				Lab		Per Credit		Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	2	Hours	_	Hour		Hours	_	Hour	_	Hours	Ļ	Hour	_	Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less) Master's		0	Ī	\$1,210.41	+	2	Ĺ	\$3,815.19	+	0	ľ		=	\$7,630.38
Ductorate (or Terminal Degree)		0		\$1,336.45 \$1,463.62	+	2	•	\$3,815.19 \$3,815.19	+	0		\$2,099.49 \$2,099.49	=	\$7,630.38 \$7,630.38
			-		_		-		_		-		_	
Tier One:	Studio ONLY													
Course:	ARTS 1220	Lecture	_	Per Credit	П	Lab		Per Credit	_	Studio		Per Credit		Total Course
Credits:	3	Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Hours		Hour		Compensation
Bachelor's (or Less)		0	R	\$1,018.52	+	0	٠	\$3,371.22	+	3	•	\$1,845.14	=	\$5,535.42
Master's		0		\$1,145.69	+	0	4	\$3,371.22	+	3	٠	\$1,845.14		\$5,535.42
Doctorate (or Terminal Degree)		0		\$1,272.86	+	0	*	\$3,371.22	+	3	•	\$1,845.14		\$5,535.42
							_							
	Studio ONLY													
Tier Two:				D 0 10		Lab		Per Credit		Studio	П	Per Credit		Total Course
Tier Two:	ARTS 1220	Lecture		Per Credit		Lau		I BI CIEUK				i ei Oleuit		. 4 50. 0 00.00
Course:		Lecture Hours		Hour Hour	l į	Hours	_	Hour		Hours		Hour		
	ARTS 1220		٠		+		•		+		•		=	Compensation \$6,298.47
Course: Credits:	ARTS 1220	Hours	•	Hour	+	Hours	•	Hour	+	Hours	1 1	Hour		Compensation